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To be a University of Excellence in Teaching, Learning, Research,
Innovation and Holistic Development

MISSION

To provide quality education and training, research and innovation to
meet the needs of a dynamic Society

CORE VALUES
Academic excellence Professionalism
Integrity Quality
Innovation Teamwork
Equity Social responsibility
Dynamism
PHILOSOPHY

Kaimosi Friends University College endeavors to be ranked amongst the world class
universities based on academic excellence and research that impacts on societal needs.
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RIS STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

- KAFUCO will continue to focus on the following strategic objectives as set out in the strategic plan
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE UNIVERSITY COLLEGE

The principal activities of the University College are derived from the core functions as stipulate

in the Universities Act 2012 and the University College statutes. The mandate of KAFUCO is to
provide quality education and training, research and innovation to meet the needs of 2 a
society.
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LE KAFUCO is the only Umversu:y College located in the tropical rain forest in Kenya.
It e ﬁrst and the only Umvers1ty in- V1h1ga County SRR

" October, 2006 the East Africa Yearly Meeting of the Friends Church (Quakers)
proposal to establish a University and submitted to Commission for University

Education

® November, 2008 CUE paid the first visit to ascertain progress on the proposed
establishment of a University

®  July, 2011 CUE second inspection visit observed that no significant progress had be

made

® 2012, Friends Church decided to explore the possibility of establishing the KTTC as
a constituent College of a Public University

= 24% July, 2012 MMUST Council considered Friends Church request and
recommended the establishment of Kaimosi Friends University College as her
Constituent College

= 27" August, 2013 CUE inspected the facilities with a view to establishing the
availability, adequacy and appropriateness for the proposed University College

® 30" January, 2014 CUE inspected the KTTC with view of establishing the proposed
University

® 25" February, 2014 the Governor chaired a stakeholders’ meeting which included
representatives from MMUST, CUE, Moi University, JRUAT, KTTC and the local
community geared towards establishing the University College.




2R ': ) _' : w II"‘ Fcbruary, 2014 MMUST appomted Ptof Ogodo, M ] Nand1 to coordmate e

Lo MMUST steermg comlmttee in addressmg accrechtamon issues with CUE -

e ‘IO."" Apfil; '2014; CUE tecbmrhendéd upgrade of K‘TTC‘to:a,constitilent’collég‘elof s
MMUST

" September, 2014 MMUST appointed Prof. Ogodo. M. J. Nandi  Director of
KAFUCO

= I* September, 2014 MMUST seconded the first batch of 528 student and 46 staffs
to KAFUCO

" 22*May, 2015 KAFUCO was gazetted following the legal Notice No. 87 in the
Kenya Gazette Supplement No. 65

®  I* February, 2016 MMUST Council appointed Prof. Ogodo, M. J. Nandi as Ag.
Principal, Prof. Y.K. Ayodo as Ag. Deputy Principal (A&SA) and Prof. M. M.
Amadalo as Ag. Deputy Principal (AF&P)

® 7% November 2016 the Ministry of Education appointed a Council for KAFUCO
= 2"December 2016 KAFUCO Council was inaugurated
" 9" January 2017 KAFUCO received the first cohort of students

® 25" January, 2018 Cabinet Secretary of Education appointed Prof. Ogodo, M. J.
' Nandi as Principal, Prof. Y.K. Ayodo as Deputy Principal (A&SA) and Prof. M. M.
Amadalo as Deputy Principal (F&D)

" 21I* February, 2018 CUE visit for Technical Inspection of facilities for award of
Charter

= 6™ May, 2018 CS Education, Hon. Amb. Dr. Amina Mohamed visit to KAFUCO
to assess the transition status between KAFUCO and KTTC

®  Graduation of 127 Bachelor of Education and 52 Bachelor of commerce students for

ST cohort and 7 Diploma in Business and IS Diploma in Education
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GOVERN ANCE AND MANAGEMENT

MEMLBERS OF THE UNIVERSITY COUNCI

» The Proﬁles for the umvelsu:y councxl members who were - ofﬂce for the year 2018/ ZOI9 are presented here below :

CHAIRPERSON

Dr. Bernadette Mungai,
PRD(ICU), MBA(USILL), BBM(USIL)

YoB: 1959
r. Mungai is a Consultant and an Entrepreneurship Development Expert with twenty seven years experiehce’ in
the African region. She has been a Team Leader on various donor funded projects — the British Council, DfID -
and The World Bank funded Private Sector Development Projects. She has also been involved in capacity
building, strategic management and business development programmes. She has extensive experience in Africa having

worked in Kenya, Ethiopia, Uganda, Tanzania, Rwanda, Ghana, Nigeria, South Africa, Zimbabwe and South Sudan.

~ FCPA Joseph Z. M. Abuta,
Member
»YoB: 1951
MBAJKUAT), CPA (K), CPS (K)

YoB: 1965.
“PhD (Maseno University), MBA
(Mo University), MA (LoN) BA

7' (LoN): oA Abaca P d cence of ‘over
rof. Ogodo M. J. Nandi is a full Professor and u:.l RESSIASSIE iperntE OL.0TY,
currently the Principal of Kaimosi Friends oty penss i, eonponite gove1nance/manag§ment,. )
University College. He has over twenty five years company  secretarial practice, public ﬁn_apce_,, <%

of teaching and research experience at University level auditing and executive management. He has served in’ -~
and has published several texts books and articles in various capacities as a tutor, accountant, finance manager, ..
refereed journals. He has also won International research company secretary and CEO. He has published several -
grants in multi-disciplinary research. He has taught and professional articles for training and research usé: 'a:nvdt : j:

supervised many students at Masters and PhD level. Prof : 5 ; ; i . P
pery y o pamcxpated/ assisted in developmg various rural based_-_-
Nandi has served as Administrator for over fourteen ST

- years of which six year as head of :d_ep'ar'tme‘nc: andeeight - | 2 v 0 LT S e S e s e e e B B
years' as ‘a- Director. He is'a member of professional
_bodies ;md has also made several linkages with scholars in for services offered to various _1nst1tutxons/ O.rgmlzatlons
othet countries. v Currently. he is the Public Pihanée Expeft at’ Kisumu
Urban' Project and a le1d consultmt in Machogu Abuta

& Assoc1ates ‘ S <



r. Osir has wide experience in strategic
D planning and management. Has a large number
of projects that he has developed having been
in leadership position for about 12 years, mainly as head
of a major research department between 1992 and 2005
and as interim Director of Research .Since 2006, he is a
senior program specialist with the International
Development Research Center (IDRC) responsible for
the program on Science and Innovation in Southeast Asia
and Africa, currently based at the Nairobi office. He has
managed a large number of research projects in Asia
covering various aspects of science, technology and
innovation (STT), including biotechnology innovations
and bio-safety policies. Dr. Osir is currently managing
the $14M Science Granting Councils Initiative for Sub-
Saharan Africa which is jointly funded by the Canada’s
International Development Research Centre (IDRC),
United Kingdom’s Department for International
Development (DFID), and South Africa’s National
Research. Foundation (NRF).

Ms. Jane W. Wambugy,

Rep National Treasury
YoB: 1965
MBA-Finance (KEMU), CPA (K)

l \ / I . Jane W. Wambugu was appointed
Alternate Director to the Cabinet Secretary,

the National Treasury in May 2017 where

currently serving in Department of Public Investment &
Portfolio Management. She has served in various
Government Ministries as an accountant with more than

20  years' . experience
Accountant in Energy Sector.donor funded projects for 5

years and. 4- years' as. Deputy Head .of Accounts . Unit .

respectxvcly Member of Institute of Public. Accountant
of Kenya (ICPAK) and memiber of Institute of Certified
Investment Fmancxal Analyst (ICIEA).

having = worked = as  Project.

YoB 1966
B Ed Econt & Bus (KL{) MBA (ANU
Aus) CPA (K) Dip. Accountmg

(S.QLD, Aus).

PA Romana has a wealth of experience in
C financial management and education

administration from the public and private
sectors as well as Non-Governmental organizations in
Kenya. She has held various management positions with
the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)
Kenya, CARE International, Ministry of Education,
Ministry of Finance and Ministry of Trade and has
experience in managing secondary school Boards. She
chairs the KAFUCO Audit Committee and is a member
of the Human Resources Committee. She is currently a

Consultant in Financial Services & Project Management.

Dr. Josephine Waudo,
Member
YoB: 1955.
PhD, (KU),M.Ed (UON), BED,
(UoN), Higher National Diploma,
(KIPC), Cert Teacher Education,
(State of Israel).

r. Waudo is currently a Council Member-
Kitale National Polytechnic and has taught as
a  Part-Time Lecturer, Mount Kenya
University. She has been working as an Acting Deputy
Director- Research in charge of Policy, Planning &
Strategy Division in the Directorate of Research
Management and Development at Ministry of Education
Science and Technology Headquarters. She was once an
Assistant Director Quality Assurance and Standards

MoE Headquarters md Senior Inspe_ctc_)r of Schc_)ols n

charge of Grading -and Re—grading of Teachers. . Sub

Section -and " in addmon coordmated Soctal Studies
Sub)ect at the MOE Headquarters ‘



YoB:'1980.

LLB (Moi University), MA.
(Coventry University), MClArh

i

s. Ingutiah is an Advocate of the High Court
of Kenya currently the Project Lead at
Advocates for International Development

(A4ID) heading the Business and Human Rights
Programme. Previously, Ms.
Federation of Women Lawyers (FIDA) Kenya as a
Senior Legal Counsel where she provided legal aid

Ingutiah  worked at

services for needy women and engaged in advocacy for
social and legislative reforms in Kenya. In addition, she
engaged in regional advocacy at the East African
Community and African Commission on Human’s and
People’s Rights (ACHPR). Jacqueline holds a Masters of
Arts Degree in Peace and Reconciliation Studies from
Coventry University and LLB from Moi University. She
is a member of the Law Society of Kenya, FIDA Kenya
and Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. In addition, she is
the Vice- Chairperson of the West Kenya Law Society,
mediator under the Judiciary Court Annexed Mediation
Pilot Project and a member of the Ethics Review
Committee at Jaramogi Oginga Odinga Teaching and
Referral Hospital.

' oOlick
| psuDpoais

Master of Ed, B.Ed (KU), B. Ed (KW), Dip[oma in Public

Management (Hiroshima University, Japan).

s. Olick is is currently Deputy Director of
Education;- In-charge of Primary Education.
She has a wealth of experience in education

having  held
positions. Previously, Ms. Olick worked as Regional

administration various  management
Director of Education, County Director of Education
and District education officers for over 10 year in
various parts of the Country. She is a council member of

Alupe University College, National Children Service,
East African Regional Ballgames and KICD.




Prof. Ogodo. M. J. Nandi
........ Principal
SRR PhD. (Maseno University), MBA (Moi University), MA (UoN), BA (UoN)

______ Prof M. M. Amadalo, Dr. E. Okwako, Dr. Samwel Munda,
R Deputy Principal, Ag. Deputy Principal, (ASA) Assistant Registrar (Academic
s (Finance & Dean SESS Affairs)

....... Development) PhD, M.Phil (Moi University), B.Ed PhD. (MMUST), M.Ed (Mgt) Egerton

NN PhD (KU), Med(KU), (Arts),Hons (Kenyatta University). University, B.Ed(Sc).

Bed,(Sc),Hons(UoN).

- Dep Finance Officer
) ) MBA (Finance)-UoN, Bcom- -
s o : " (Accounting)-UoN, CPA (K).




Dr. Kelvin K. Omieno.
Ag. Dean, School of
Computing & Informatics
Ph.D. Information Systems (JOUST),
Msc. Information Technology, Bsc.
Computer Science (MMUST).

Dr. P. A. Mugesani, CoD, Educational Foundations,
Senior Assistant Registrar Pschycology & Management
(HR & Admin) PhD in Disaster & Humanitarian
B.Ed. (Arts) Hons (KU), MBA Assistance (MMUST), M.Phil,
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ (HRM)(KU), PhD (HRM)JUAT (University of Osloo) B.Ed.

Ms. C. Shikuku,
Assistant Librarian
Diploma (Information Studies)
Kenya Polytechnic, Bsc (Information

Ms. Linet Mayavi, Advocate
In-Charge Legal Affairs Office
LLB (Hons) KU, Post Graduate Dip,

Law (KSL). Dip. Public Relations

(ICM)




| AlCEAIRPERSDL’N.f-SASTATEMENT

I feel honored and duty-bound to present an
overview of the University College
performance for the year ended 30th June 2019.
The University College Council played its
rightful role in the University College’s
A operations. The council has remained steadfast
-~ and united in support of efforts by KAFUCO
management in transforming the University College
into a regional and globally leading centre of academic and research excellence. I
_am pleased that during the period under review, major renovations, ICT
infrastructure and higher voltage power installations were undertaken to improve
service delivery in teaching and research.

;\"‘n'.._..,“_,,.-«"'(

The University Council is focused to position KAFUCO as spring of knowledge in
providing quality education, teaching, research and innovation that meet the
needs of a dynamic society needs. KAFUCO has been keen on addressing national
aspirations by conforming to national policies such as the Big Four agenda, Kenya
Vision 2030 and Sustainable Development Goals. During the year ended 30th
June2019, KAFUCO was mainly funded through Government of Kenya capitation
(66%) and Appropriation in Aids (34 %) for its recurrent expenditure.

The University College was able to remain on course in its performance albeit
with explained shortfalls due to financial constraints. The University College
remains committed to playing a vital role in transforming higher education in
terms of sustainable, long term growth. The Council will continue to work closely
with Management in provision of high quality and all-round education as
enshrined in its mission.

I wish to finally thank the Government of Kenya, Council members, Management
and staff for their continued support over the year in striving to make KAFUCO a
World Class University that impacts on societal needs.

DR. BERNADETTE MUNGALI, PhD.
CHAIRPERSON, KAIMOSI FRIENDS UNIVERSITY COLLEGE COUNCIL




~PRINCIPAL’'S STATEMENT

Statements of Kaimosi Friends University College (KAFUCO) for
\ the year ended June 30, 2019 as per the Universities Act 2012 and

t;»

. thePublic Audit Act 2015.
,

‘ »::«\I have the pleasure to present the Annual Report and Financial

" Financial resources and management has been instrumental in
4 delivering on the core mandate of the ‘University College.
""" KAFUCO was mainly funded through Government Capitation to a
tune of KES 410.569Mwhich included recurrent of KES 172.738M, development
vote of KES 146.950M and KES 90.885M from appropriation in Aid (A-I-A). It has
not been easy, but with co-operation from our stakeholders and Council
members’ guidance, the University College was able to operationalize its core
functions. The University College is greatly indebted to the Government for the
continued financial support it has received to date.

.

During the year under review the University College had a deficit of KES
55.308M as compared with surplus of KES 16.868M for the year ended 30t June,
2018. As an emerging University College, KAFUCO faces the challenge of
expanding its financial resources base and generating increased levels of A.ILA.
KAFUCO intends to find new sources of funding; exercise more gainful use of
existing facilities; and be more prudent in resource management. In this regard,
the University has established an Income Generating Unit and implemented a Fee
Policy for student tuition fees in order to expand its financial resource base and
generate increased levels of A-I-A.

The University College shall actively continue to engage in building international
research partnerships and networks and locally respond to National Research
Funding (NRF) grant competitions. We intend to develop an even stronger focus
on the short, medium- and long-term impact of our research when planning our
activities and collaborations and when evaluating our performance. Increased
Students’ enrolment and focus on The Big 4 agenda remain a priority.

On behalf of KAFUCO I wish to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the Government and all our development partners who have continued to
support the University College in its endeavor to grow. I also wish to thank the
Council members for their oversight and counsel during the period under review.
I am also indebted to Management and Staff for their dedication to duty over the
past three formative years of KAFUCO's growth and development.

PROF. OGODO, M.J]. NANDI
THE PRINCIPAL



I Ownershxp

"'KAFUCO 1s a body corporate Gazetted on

» iiZZ““ May, ZOIS as ‘a’ constituent college of

' Technology under the Gazette Legal Notice

No. 87 Kenya Gazette supplement No_ 65.
The University College is whole owned by
Government of Kenya.
2. Responsibility of the University College
Council
The University College Council is responsible
and accountable to the Government of Kenya
through the State Department for University
Education and Research for ensuring that the
University complies with the Universities Act
2012, the University Statutes (20I13) and
adheres to the highest standards of Corporate
Governance as prescribed in the State
Corporations Act and the code of Governance
for State Corporation (Mwongozo).
3. Remuneration of the University College
Council members.
The University College Council members
other than the Principal and the ex-official
members do not receive a salary. They are
however paid a sitting allowance for every
meeting attended. The sitting allowance paid

to the Council members is disclosed in note 6

of the financial statements.

v 4, Conﬂlct Of Interest

'b:'The Councd has comphed w1th Mwongozo

- .provisions paragraph 1.3 that “expects each

" where their' persOnal - interest - conflict *-with -

Council ‘member to act honestly at all times

and not to. place - themselves in a situation

e ST —
Semed N~_‘

reported - to

members dlsclose all real or percelved conﬂxct

_of interest regxstered in a reglster mamtamed

 and updated accordmgly

However, the Council is yet to develop a
policy on Conflict of Interest as envisaged by
paragraphs 2.6 and 4.3. The Policy is among
those scheduled for development to provide a
framework to manage these conflicts.

S. Risk Management

The identification and management of risk is a
continuous process linked to the achievement
of the University’s objectives. The Council is
responsible for risk management and has an
approved policy and procedure document for
risk management. The University College
conducts risk assessment on regular basis
which informs the internal audit plan. The
University College has a risk management
committee ~ which  oversees  the  risk
management. The University College has an
Internal Audit department to carry out risk
based internal audit on a quarterly basis. The
University Council through its Audit and
received  regular

Compliance ~ Committee

reports during the year on internal control and
risk.
Moreover, the University College management

conducts legal compliance reviews which are

College has an in-house legal officer to advice

on legal issues.

the - Couricil.- The : 'Uni{iérsity' o



.16 Staemiit of Campliance

The Council Members: confirm - that Kaimosi

' Friends University College has throughout the
-~ year ending30June 20I9 complied with the
~entire. statutory and’ regulatory requirements
and has been managed in accordance with the
Principal of Corporate Governance

7. Committees of the University College
Council

In order to facilitate the smooth running of its
affairs, the University Council establishes such
committees with the membership and with
such terms of reference as it may deem fit. The
following committees were in place during the
year ending 30 June, 2019.

a. Finance & Resource Mobilization
Committee

b. Audit, Governance, Risk Management &
Compliance Committee

¢.  Human Resources Policy Committee
Academic, Strategy, Planning,
Development and Innovation Committee

The University Council nominates the
Chairperson of each committee of the Council
provided that in the absence of the
Chairperson of any committee, the members
present and constituting a quorum may elect
one person from among them to chair the
meeting. The Chairperson of the University
Council and the Principal are ex-officio

members of every committee of the Council.

_Finance & R&sourc_e Mobilization Committee

- The ‘committee provides oversight ‘and advice

on matters relating to the University College
financial position, annual estimates, resource
~mobilization and investments and pay due

regard to the. necessity to refer matters  of

2t

e i

—

major importance to -the Council for  final
approval. - »

Aud, Gorerance, Risk Mansgement &
CdmplianceCor'nmittee'M o

The Committee oversee and advise on matters’

relating ‘to. the safety of assets;. operations “of

adequate systems; control  processes,
preparation of accurate financial reports in
compliance  with  legal and  statutory
requirements and standards; internal and
external audits; risk management strategies;
institutional governance;  monitoring of
performance contract; and quality assurance.
Human Resource Committee

The Committee oversees the formulation and
subsequent monitoring/ review of policies and
strategies on employment of all University
staff, including policies on recruitment and
selection, staff development 'and training,
performance management schemes and salaries,
administrative practices and other conditions
of service.

Academic, Strategy, Planning, Development
and Innovation Committee

The Committee advise and oversees the
strategic development and implementation of
academic and research programmes; physical
facilities and infrastructures plan; quality
assurance for excellence in teaching, research
and innovation and protection of intellectual

assets.



ANCE AND RESOURCE MOBILIZATION COMMITTEE
,,,,,,, B

- FCPA]oseph Z. M Abuta
' Member.

i Dr.Ellie Osir
. iii. . Ms Nerreah A. Olick
iv. .~ Ms. Jane Wambugu

" Representing Mian;ry of Educétion L5 " )

SR TR -"Secretary

ooy Principa

ACADEMIC, STRATEGY, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

i Dr. Ellie Osir Chairman
ii. FCPA. Joseph Z. M Abuta Member
iii. Dr. Josephine D. Waudo Member
iv. Ms Nerreah A. Olick Representing Ministry of Education
v.  Ms. Jane Wambugu Representing the Treasury
vi. Principal Secretary
HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE
i Ms. Jacqueline O. Ingutiah Chairperson
ii.  Dr. Josephine D. Waudo Member
iii. CPA. Romana Kimende Member
iv. Ms. Nerreah A. Olick Representing Ministry of Education
v.  Ms. Jane Wambugu Representing the Treasury
vi. Principal Secretary

AUDIT, GOVERNANCE, RISK MANAGEMENT & COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
i.  CPA Romana Kimende
ii.  Ms. Jacqueline O. Ingutiah
iii.  Ms Nerreah A. Olick
iv. Ms. Jane Wambugu

Chairperson
Member

Representing Ministry of Education
Representing the Treasury

v.  Internal Auditor Secretary
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: University College Council meetings

~During the FY 2018/19 Council developed and implemented a work plan (Council Almanac).

Council and its committees held a total of twenty seven meetings (both ordinary and special

meetings). 'Quar’terly meetings are normally held as per State corporation-Act 446, PFM Act

2012 and performance contracting regulations for the purpose of complying with the statutory

timeliness stipulated in these laws for submission of reports to Government Agencies. During

the Year under review, Council and its Committees held their meetings regularly with the

summary of its meeting being as below:

Council Members '

Research

N
3 ’ . gs i
ol ° s
2 ; ; : E R AEE S
5 O g8 S |LEAQ| RS
ks H ]
L [ B AN L R LR
98 <§:\ < . O |8l g |ai \g
y 3 53 Blagle | ogf gl
g g |3 3 BEE IEREL: EAS
i HEEE S BREREEIEE]
&2 CHN-fa e p S5 |@3|LEg <ad| <
Dr. Chairp‘erson, F 07/11/2016 | 07/11/2020 Membership . X X X X
Bernadette Council
Mungai Attendance | 8/8 | 1/6 X X X
- Prof. Ogodo, | Principal / M | 25/01/2018 | 25/01/2023 Measbeh: < N N N X
| M.J.Nandi | Secertary =
Attendance 8/8 | 6/6 | 4/4 5/5 X
FCPA Joseph | Chaiman, M | 07/11/2016 | 07/11/2019 M hi \ N \
Z.M.Abuta | FRM cobeahip 2
Committee Attendance 7/8 | 6/6 X 5/5 X
"Ms. Chairperson, F 07/11/2016 | 07/11/2019 ; q \l Al
Jacqueline O. | HR Membership X X
" Ingutiah Committee Attendance 8/8 X 4/4 X 4/4
. Dr. Ellie O. Chairperson, M | 07/11/2016 | 07/11/2019 3 Al N N
Osir ASPD&I Membership X X
Committee Attendance 7/8 | 2/6 X 2/S X
- CPA Chairperson, F 07/11/2016 | 07/11/2019 : \ ol o
Romana AGRMC Membership X X
- Kimende Committee Attendance 7/8 X 4/4 X 4/4
gr.v]\;)seghine Member F 07/11/2016 | 07/11/2019 Membership N X N N X
. Waudo
Attendance 7/8 | 2/6 | 4/4 5/5 X
Ms. Jane W. | Representative | F 10/5/2017 | 10/5/2020 Menbesship «f A N N N
Wambugu |, CS, National Attendance | 7/8 | 5/6 | 3/4 | 4/5 3/4
Treasury
g{ls lI:Tereah Rpegr;sentative F 04/06/2018 | 04/06/2019 Meuilsbedhis a] Al ] \ \
1 ) T tae Attendance | 7/8 | 5/6 | 2/4 | 4/5 2/4
Department
for University
Education.&




‘the recurrent grant from the. Exchequer of KES 172.738 m:lhon. Intemally generated revenue stood acjﬁx:‘
KES 90.885millionas at end of the year consisting of Tuition Fee and related income of KES 77.109
million, Income generating activities and other Income at KES 13.776million.In General the University
College recorded a decline in financial performance with a deficits of KES 55.308 million as compared
with a surplus of KESI6.868millionduringprevious year. The University College is in initial phase of
commencing Income generating activities that are aimed to smoothen the seasonal income trend and to

expand its financial resource base and generate increased levels of appropriation in Aid (A-I-A).

| INCOME %,

. % % %
_ ‘so,ooo L 66% ot 69%  44%
Tuition & Related Ine * 9 85,680 55,868 29% 29%  49%
beelicome 13776 5323 7670 W 5% 2% 7%
. 263,623 201742113539~ 100% _ 100% 100%

INCOME DISTRIBUTION

350,000,00
300,000.00
250,000.00
200,000.,00
150,000.00
100,000.00

50,000.00

30 JUN 19 ~ 30JUN18 30 JUN 17
200,739 50,000
25,680

5323

113,539

® Exchequer Grants Tuition & Related Income IGA & Other Income 1 TOTAL




EXPENDITURE TREND

350000
300000
250000
200000
150000
100000

30JUNE 19 30JUNE 18 30 JUNE 17

TOTAL INCOME VERSUS TOTAL EXPENDITURE

The relationship between income and expenditure is as tabulated below. There has been seasonal trend in

the performance of the institution.

e Income/Expenditure Trend In KESs “000”

30 JUNE-I9 | 30JUN-I8 | 30 JUNE-17
Total Income 263,623 291,742 113,539
Total Expenditure 318,930 274,874 93,637
Net Surplus/Deficit (55,308) 16,868 19,902

INCOME/EXPENDITURE TREND

R 350,000
300,000

250,000

200,000

150,000

100,000

50,000

ST 0
._‘:.:.::::::::: -50,000 Ju June 18 June 17 :i:".‘::.:.‘..:

-100,000

—=@=Total Income  —@=—Total Expenditure  =@=Net Surplus/Deficit




30 JUNI9 30 JUNIS8 30 JUNI7 30 JUNI9 30 JUNI8 30 JUNI7

KES‘000' KES‘000 KESV00' % %

Council Expenses 9,284 17,264 11,014 3% 6%

5,098 3,114 2449 2% 1%

Personnel Costs 206,386 164,443 27,444 66% 60%
Operating & Administrative Costs 70,296 70,501 42,846 22% 26%
Repairs and maintenance TS 5,802 5,711 2% 2%
Depreciation and amortization expensel5,377 13,750 4,173 5% 5%
Loss on Disposal of Biological Assets 32 = = 0% -
Total Expense 314,125 274,874 93,637 100% 100%

EXPENDITURE DISTRIBUTION 30 JUNE 19

- 0% 3% 2%

¥ Council Expenses WHIES

Personnel costs * Operating & Administrative Costs

* Repairs and maintenance ® Depreciation and amortization expense

M Loss on disposal of Biological Assets




SEP IR PPE @ COST KES "000" SO,
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- The University has had a healthy Working capital position with positive net current assets position as
e shewBeowa L
0 Pamicdas  30JUNE-I90JUNE-I830JUNE-I7 .
RIS KES'000'  KES000'  KES000'
:j . ) : ) i' : R Total Current Assets 113,564 135,584 165,587
______ ) Total Current Liabilities 87,442 49,923 40,966

e Net Working Capital 26122 85.660 124,621

R WORKING CAPITAL IN KES "000"
BRI 180,000

160,000

........ 140,000

SR 120,000

100,000

80,000
60,000
40,000

20,000

0
Total Current Assets Total Current Liabilities Net Working Capital




- COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS.

.The University College corﬁpliesWith statutory

. requirements as follows:

on employers an obligation to deduct and remit
monthly income tax for all employees and be
remitted to the pay master general on or before
9 day of the following month. The University
has complied with the deadline for remission.

2. NSSF

The NSSF Act, 2013, Laws of Kenya, requires
employers to deduct and remit NSSF
deductions on monthly basis and remit the same
on or before 9" of the following month. The
University has been remitting the deductions to
NSSF on time.

3. NHIF

NHIF Act, 1998, Laws of Kenya, requires the
employer to deduct the NHIF dues and remit
the same on or before the 9" of the following
month. The University College has complied
with the NHIF Act.

4. HELB

HELB Act, 1995, Laws of Kenya, requires
employers to deduct from the wages or
remuneration of the loanee(s) the amount of

any loan as instructed by the Board and submit

within IS days after the end of each month.

- loans as required and submitted the same within

v the stipulated fifteen days aftef the end of each

month.

S.I,NITA‘ v o
Indu&trial ‘Tréirﬁng. Levy jActCAP 237requirés '

' émpldyeré’ to’ pay KESS’ 0=, pei e‘mplé'ye‘e.,'

including temporary, casual and apprentices per
month. The University College has effected
NITA payments as required and submitted the
same within the stipulated timelines which is the
last working day of the month.

The University College is cognizant of the fact

that compliance is a continuous process. To this
effect it has put measures in place to ensure the
institution maintains the required threshold of
compliance to best corporate Governance
principles.

MAJOR RISKS FACING THE ENTITY

The University College’s principal financial

assets are, trade receivables and cash and short
term deposits which arise directly from its
operations. The institution has financial
liabilities comprising trade and other payables.
KAFUCO is exposed to the following risks:

1) Market risks

i) Liquidity risk

iii)  Credit risks

The University College Council has overall
responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the University College’s risk

management framework.

The institution’s risk management policies has

been established to identify and analyze the risks
-faced by the Umver51ty C_ouégfe; 'set ,a'ppr.ol‘jria.t:e :

risk- limits and controls, and- monitor risks  and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies

and systems will be reviewed regularly to reflect



changes in economic conditions and  the

~ University College’s activities.

i) Market risk:-Low Student Envolment

The Univetéity FCollege is more Iikeiy to

- experience low stadent enrolment due to

. competitioﬁ which may result in the reduction
of revenue.

ii) Liquidity risk:-Low Funding

Liquidity risk is the risk that the KAFUCO will
not be able to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due. The University
College’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the University College’s reputation.
Typically the University ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected
operational expenses for a period of 30 days.
This excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters and political
violence. All capital investments are funded by
the Government. However, Low funding levels
by the Government may result to liquidity issues
and slow development in infrastructure which
can lead to congestion & inadequate facilities.
iii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the

University College if a customer or counter

“contractual obligations, and arises principally

from - the ' organization’s - receivables = from

customers. . KAFUCO . receives  fees.  from

e ﬂ:“ﬁu""mmm

students which minimizes the credit risk

CX_P osure.

Classification of credit risk Béa::ing assets

The table below rgpfeééhm Univers_ity’s b b

. maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30June -

2019.
ASSETS FY 2018/19
Current Assets KES
Cash and Cash Equivalents 68,154,113
Receivables from Exchange 21,166,355

All the University’s receivables are fully
performing and are expected to be received.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand

and deposits held with banks.

MATERIAL ARREARS IN
STATUTOTRY/FINANCIAL
OBLIGATIONS

Currently the University College has no material

arrears in pending bills, tax default, outstanding
staff and pension obligations on the pension
scheme as it meets all its statutory obligations as
they fall due.

There is no major financial impropriety
reported by internal audit/ Audit, Governance,
Risk Management & Compliance Committee of
the University College Council and external
auditors. Consequently, the University College
has responsive governance structures and

practice in the Council and top Management.




students and staff members give thexr time and

expertise. The University College subscribes to an
ethos of service to and relevance in the community,
through its Community Engagement and Outreach,
and Linkage and Partnership policies.

During the year 2018 /19, the University College
took part in various CSR activities as listed below:

I. Engagement with the BodaBoda
operators from Hamisi Sub-County

Boda Boda operation, a fast growing
sector, is a major form of transport in the
area, preferred by our students as well as
some staff due to convenience and
inaccessible roads in the village. The riders
are part of our stakeholders and
partners.The safety, livelihood and
development of the operators as well as
commuters are thus a concern to the
University College. In this regard, on 28th
March, 2019 KAFUCO organized an activity
for the Boda Boda operators from the
Hamisi Sub-county. The engagement was
multipronged; Marketing, collaboration,
and partnering. The activity involved

issuance of reflector jackets for enhanced
visibility on the road thus ensuring their
personal

~ protection. ]

" 'westem reglon and conservatlon Of tl’llS forest IS one' e

_ of the ma]or ob]ectxves of KAFUCO

Principal Prof. Nandi leads members of staff in tree
planting exercise
3. Disability Mainstreaming Seminar Held
at KAFUCO

N f,

i‘m‘%.’i .q u“"‘ r

,4 7k

The seminar was held on Friday 15th March 2019
Friends

at  Kaimosi University College. The
facilitator was Mr. Manyonge who is the Advisor -
National Council of Persons with Disability.
The seminar focused on the background and
purpose of disability mainstreaming, focus on
mainstreaming, of  Disability,

categories of Persons with Disability (PWD) and

determination

thematic areas objectives and strategies of Disability

Mainstreaming ~ which  entails  employment,

remuneration :md compens:ltion, procurement,

advocacy and inclusion.



REPORTS OF THE DIRECTORS

Teaching and .resgarch isa key pillar

the year 2018/2019, Kaimosi
Friends University College
(KAFUCO) academic staff

members excelled in many aspects.
The Academic and Student Affairs

division mandate is to ensure quality

- b
Ag. Deputy Principal

(Academic & Student Affairs) . ) ) )
teaching, learning, innovation and

holistic development as outlined in

the vision of the University College are achieved.

During the FY 2018/20109, the division organized and engaged in
various core activitics through its subdivisions and schools that were

geared towards our vision.

The division of Academic and Studenc Affairs is divided into two

sub divisions:

® Academics
(ir) Students Affairs

ACADEMICS
Under academics we have Schools and Departments headed by the

Deans and Chair of Departments’ respectively. There are four

Schools in the division as listed below:-

(1) School of Education and Social Sciences(SESS)
(if)  School of Science (SOS)

(i)  School of Business and Economics (SOBE)

(iv)  School of Computing and Informatics (SCIT)

From 2019/2020, the University College will be offering
programmes from Certificate to Doctorate level.

KAFUCO has two (2) Senate approved Ph.D Programmes,
five (5) Master Programmes, fifteen (I15) Bachelor
Programmes, six (6) Diploma courses four and (4) Certificate
courses. The University College endeavors to develop her new

programs that suit the University College philosophy and

.Academic niche.

1.. Professor : 1
2. Associate Professor 1
3. Senior Lecturers 3
4. Lecturers 10
5. Tutorial Fellows 13

Total number of Academic Staff 28

Full-time to Part- time Ratio

School/ Faculty Full-time | Part-time | Ratio
lecturers | Lecturers

School of Education & 14 | 44 I:4

Social Science(SESS)

School of Business & 7 24 1:3

Economics (SOBE)

School of Science(SoS) 10 30 1:3

School of Computing and

Information

Technology(SCIT) 4 I4] L4

The University College is understaffed with full-time to part-time
lecturers ‘ratio standing at a dismal of 1:4 as compared to the. .
ideal case of I:2 as per Commission of University Education’ -
requirement. The University College is committed to recruit -
additional academic staff in line with the Commission for

University Education requirements.

Staff to Student Ratio
School /Faculty Lecturers | Students | Ratio
School of Education and 74 1114 | I:I5
Social Science(SESS)
School of Business and 31 407 | L:14
Economics(SOBE)
.| School of Science ~ (SoS) | .~ 40| 20| L5 | .
| School 0(~Co_m'puting and .| .. I8 ed [ T4
- |- Information Technology - - - PR




......................................................... Current Student POpUIation per
..................... SChOOI

S her very: own - stidents - in 2016/2017, 2017/2018 and
. .2018/2019 Academic Years. o ‘

-7’77 Student numbers continue to grow in line with the University
----- College plans.

-7 Student Numbers

S = School of Business & Economics 451
EIEIEIERERE s School of Education & Social Science 1118

= School of Science, Computing & Informatics 250
FY 2015-16  FY 2016-17 FY 201I7-18 FY 2018-19
" Total Student | 550 | 1201 1723 | 1819 |

|
Numbers |
|

The University College currently has students enrolled in

Bachelor’s, Diploma and Certificate programme as indicated

below: -
Master Degree 2
- .- | Bachelor Degree 1744
.| Diploma Level 63
[ Certificate Level 10
T Tofal 1819




the MMUST Senate and. are now rolled out to the market.

B SCHOOL OF EDUC ATTON AND These programmes 1vr1c-h.1dbc the followmg— ‘
- 'SOCIAL SCIENCES (SESS) |

. B'lchelor ofEducatlon 1in Elrly Chddhood._ e

B). Masters Programmes.
Master of Educanon in E'ng'hSh»L.ariguage

jSchool of Educatlon and Social Sciences is one of the Schools i,.

in I\a.lmom Friends Un1ver51ty College.

bDuring.tlie.Finaﬁcial:Year 201 8/ 2019, the school wishes to i

register her appreciation to the Council, Management and the 1.

staff both teaching and non-teaching for their efforts to see *

that the school grows and runs its core activities smoothly.

Departments

The School of Education and Social Sciences (SESS) initially 1:

had four departments under which the above programmes are

offered namely:-

(i) Department of Languages and Literature

(it) Department of Social Sciences

(iif) Department of Curriculum Studies

(iv) Department of Psychology, Foundations and

Management

Currently the School has three departments of which the

Department of Curriculum and Instructional Technology has

1v.

C). Doctorate Programmes

‘Master of Arts in Rehgxon
Master of Science in Physics.
Master of Arts in Comparative Literature

Doctor of Philosophy in Religion
Doctor of Philosophy in Comparative Literature

Graduates 2017/2018 Financial Year

The School of Education and Social Sciences made strides in
the Financial Year 2017/2018 by having a total of 142

students’ graduate in various disciplines.

Number of graduates from various disciplines

® Bachelor of Education (B.ED) Arts 127 Graduants

. - 11 Diploma in Social Work 9 Graduants
d with the D F : (5 P
beiln b;uerge with the egartmcnt of Psychology, Foundation (i) Cortificate in Social Work [ Geaduant
Akl dylenagement 5 Gne epartment. (iv) Diploma in Criminology I Graduant
I. Academic Programmes ) Certificate in Criminology 4 Graduant
() Current Programmes List of First Class Students
SESS currently offers the following programmes: REGNO | NAME OVERAL TCLAS
Degree Programmes LMEAN |S
(i) Bachelor of Education (B.ED) Arts EDA/027 | Gidali A. 7231 | ENG/
(i) Bachelor of Social Work 6/2014 | Hastings LIT
(111) Bachelor of Criminology _
(iv) Bachelor of Education(French) EDA/002 le.ox?zo 71.86 KIS/R
(v) Bachelor of Disaster Management and International 7/2014 Willington EL
Diplomacy

(vi) Bachelor of Education(Science) EDA/042 | Wanda W. 7137 HIS/

’ 2/2014 Christine KIS
Diploma Programmes

(i) Diploma in Criminology
(if) Diploma in Social Work

Certificate Programmes

(i) Certificate in Ctiminology

(b) - New Programmes to be offered

In- addition to the current programimes that -the school has

beén :offeri_ng in “the financial year 2017/2018; the School

- -reports that several other programmes have been approved by




Management)
Bachelor of Science (Nursing)
Master of Science (Physics)

The School of Science -SoSCI is committed to be the nerve

center of the University College in matters scientific. We

strive to be a vibrant and versatile school in teaching, research,

innovations, linkages and outreach. Through cutting edge

research, we are actively involved in offering solutions to our Biology students at mangroves site at the Kenyan coast to

dynamical societal challenges. study their ecology, importance and conservation.

~-.-". The School currently is constituted of Departments of
...... Biological & Agricultural Sciences, Mathematics & Statistics
and Physical Sciences. The school boasts of having nurtured

the Department of Information Technology to sprout out as

the School of Computing and Information Technology-

SCIT. The departments are dedicated to offering quality

education to our esteemed students. The school is actively

o : engaged in cutting edge research spanning across disciplines

such as: - materials science and modelling, environmental

chemistry, medical entomology and parasitology. Agriculture students at the Sian Roses flower farm in Eldoret.

t RIRIEIRIE The school has expanded their academic program base: - wei) The School of Science was highly successful in rolling out the "

are delighted to offer Master of Science (Physics) and equally  prescribed curriculum to our students.

thrilled to soon roll out Bachelor of Science (Nursing). Weii) The school is eagerly anticipating for the arrival of the

Wodike Freezer, VWR Sahmty-Metcr, -PerkmElmer P341
FTIR polanmeter (thh computer and software) and

.'::ShlmadquDR '




SCHOOL OF BUSINESS AND

The School of- Busmess and Econormcs i EHsied 't

fulfilling its. vision of becoming tecognized . as” the leading

‘Business. school. connecting the region and ‘the world. The -

'SChOOlS operanonal and 1nfrastructural tmnsformatlon WIU.

have far-reaching implications on the future of the University
and its stakeholders. Its perpetual effort provides the evidence
of collective progress for the University. The school’s
significant enrollment is a testament of its ability to deliver
on its mandate with the support and coordination of all of
the University College’s stakeholders. The recognition of the
school’s ceaseless efforts to provide excellence in Economics
and Business education has enabled the school to become a
hub for Research, Innovation and Entrepreneurship. The
school intends to builds a network with Regional and
International Researchers to promote multidisciplinary, high

impact and globalized research.

The School of Business and Economics has three departments

above programmes namely:

i Departments of Business Administration
Management Sciences
it Department of Finance and Accounting
111 Department of Economics

Academic Programmes

a) Current Programmes
Degree Programmes

I. Bachelor of Commerce

2. Bachelor of Science in Economics

Diploma Programmes

I. Diploma in Business Management: ~ Options include:-
e  Accounting

e  Banking & Finance

e  Business administration

e  Entrepreneurship

e  Marketing

e Human resource Management

e DPurchasing &Supplies Management

L Certlﬁcatc m Busmcss Managemcnt

: b) NewProgtamnm to be offered

5 ,q.:x..;,& P

New programmes approved by Senate to be offered in the
academic year 20[9 / 2020.

I.. Masters of Busmess Admmlstmtxon -

2. KASNEB courses on offer RN
1. Diploma'in Credlt Management

1L Accountmg Technicians anlom"l .
Il Certified- Credit Profeesmnals vvvvv
v Certified Public Accountant

V. Certified Secretary

V1. Certified Investment and Financial Analyst
Vil Certified  Procurement and ~ Supply  Chain
Professional
Vil Associate in Procurement and Supply Chain.
Graduates 2017/2018 Financial Year

The academic year 2017/2018 provided an important -
milestone for the School of Business and Economics. We
introduced our MBA programs in Accounting, Finance,
Procurement, Human Resource, Marketing and Operations
and Systemns Management. As a school we celebrated our first
graduating class and reflected on everything that has been
achieved in such a short space of time including the 2018
graduating class that reunited approximately 200 students’

who first shaped the course of the university college in 2014.

b) Number of graduates from various disciplines

(vi) Bachelor of commerce (B. com) 52 Graduands

spread as follows:

° Accounting option: 13
° Finance option: 24
° Purchasing and supply chain management 10

Operations and systems management: 5
(vit) Diploma in business management : 10

c) List of the percentage scores (year one to four) of First
Class Students

REGNO | NAME OVERAL | OPTION
L MEAN
Bem/0252 | AdhiambioVin 70.5 Accountin
1 /2014 -censta_- - - - |- g
: ,Enim1nnel.: : IO
Bem/ 5002 KahendaLynda 740 | Accountin
/2014 h o . v' tg.:.




. : : The school of Computmg and Information Technology}
' ‘(SCIT) is the newest and fourth school in Kaimosi Friends

-"University College (KAFUCO). On Friday 8th February. .

2019 the Principal appointed Dr. Kelvin Omieno as the
Acting Dean, School of Computing and Information
Technology (SCIT). The School was formerly housed under
the School of Science and Computing (SOSCI) as a

department of Computing and Informatics.

During the FY 2018/2019, the school had only one
undergraduate programme (BSc in Information Technology)
and engaged in various core activities that were geared

towards our vision.

The School currently has Department of Information
Technology and Informatics running. The school also houses
Open Distance and e-learning section aimed at improving
access to quality University College academic programmes

and internationalization of programmes.

From 2019/2020, the University College will be offering

programmes from Certificate to Masters levels.

: Programmes Offered in the School

SCIT has two (2) Undergraduate programmes, One (I)
Diploma programme and One (I) Certificate programme as

follows.

—

Bachelor of Science in Information Technology
Bachelor of Science in Computer Science

Diploma in Information Technology

How N

Certificate in Information Technology

-.CENTRE FOR OPEN AND DISTANCE
- LEARNING

KAFUCO's Open, Dlstance and e- Leammg offers courses
that are quahty yet flexible to allow studenrs handle the many' -
sxtuatxons that need thelr attentlon when constramed by

location.

Vog

The Learning Management System

e-Learning entails use of blended mode of delivery for
common coutses and the use of e-learning to supplement face

to face classes.

Each school has a Learner support Assistant who will be

assisting the Directorate in ensuring that all materials are

uploaded on time at the LMS.

The ODeL policy has been prepared and approved at the
Dean Committee and University College Academic Board

and is expected to be operational in the next academic year.
Collaboration.

Currently the Directorate is in the process of signing an
MOA with Commonwealth of Leaning (CoL). This will
offer the Commonwealth Digital Education Leadership
Training in Action(C-DELTA) as a non-credit course and
Technology Enabled Learning (TEL) through tescarch,
and monitoring and

consultation,

capacity  building,

evaluation programmes for 2 to 3 years.This is meant to

. assist the Directorate in setting up the Infrastructure and

éapaéity- bu’ildir_lg»amohg the Stafﬁ» :



a‘hty educauon and Ctalﬂlﬂg,

‘ :research and innovation to' meet . thc needs of the ever- -
_____ . changmg socxety. “Thi secrion supports trammg of gmduates
to not only acquire knowledge but also contribute to its
creation; service provision to society and human resource
development; and take part in nation building. All these have
the overall impact on the realization of Kenya’s Vision 2030,
Sustainable Development Goals and the Big 4 Agenda. The
Institution requires all members of the academic staff and
students to be involved in research activities at several levels
of their training and professional career. The KAFUCO pool
of researchers is relatively small but enthusiastic in
collaborative projects to enhance its research capacity.
The success of the section’s activities is anchored on academic
staff and students spread across the four (4) Schools of the
University College. The research outputs from our
researchers target innovations and patents which should
transferred to  the

subsequently  be

community for

information and technology uptake.

The section, chairs the University College Research and

graduate Studies Board. The Board is composed of 8
members representing all the four schools. This Board has the
mandate to set agenda and review all proposals for research to

be carried out at KAFUCO and approve admission of

postgraduate students in accordance to relevant policies.

KAFUCO focuses on research projects that will help provide

solutions to problems prevailing within the local, national

ethics and objectives.

1. szmng Umversu:y of Sal.isbuty Research Delegauon led

Environmental Sciences -under -the. project: - International

.Researc/) Lmkaaes Bﬂdge to. Boosr Researc/i Inuovanan and

2. Collaboration and Partnership

During the year KAFUCO signed an MoU with Vihiga
green movement (MAHERI) which will see KAFUCO
being engaged on matters of community outreach and
innovation such as a forestation/ environmental
conservation and establishing a centre for both

agricultural and biogas research site in KAFUCO.

The plans are underway for a possible partnership.

Seminars and Training

On 7% Feb 2019 KAFUCO Held the 2 research Capacity
Building Seminar for academic staff on Grants Proposal .
writing which was attended by 36 participants including 3 %
facilitators. Areas covered were: Funding opportunities for
Research Training, How to write a Convincing and winning
proposal, Research as a life-long career path, lessons on

grantsmanship, public engagement and action planning.

On 3¢ - 8" June, 2018 at the University of Yaounde-

Cameroon, one Of faculty member attended an experc 3

.Management in Afnu ; The conference ‘was replete withd

. :socxal and natural sciences perspectxves in management of

: ElQ;I._.phg.meenng a.nd



"Molecular quanmﬁcatlon of Plasmodium parasu:e

density from the blood retained in used RDTs"

Ailie Robinson, Annette Busula, Julian Muwanguzi,

Stephen Powers, Daniel Masiga, TeunBousema, Willem

: e : - Dr. Victor Shikuku (circled) in a group photo with some of Takken, Jetske de Boer, James Logan, Khalid Beshir, and
. the workshop attendees. Colin Sutherland. Scientific Reports. volume 9,

On 22" October to 2™ November, 2018 one of faculty Article number: 5107 (2019)
member attended the 5" African School on Electronic
Structure Methods and Applications (ASESMA) held at
Addis Ababa Science & Technology University (AASTU)-
Ethiopia http://indico.ictp.it/event/8354/.The wotkshop

drew participants from fourteen (14) African states including

(Kenya, South Africa, Congo-Bravaville, Congo-Kinshasha,

Benin, Rwanda, Nigeria, Togo, Cameroon, Zambia, Burundi,

Sudan, Ghana and Ethiopia).

5% Afric Scho
A:p{lcalxnnﬁ (/\SESM/\ ”OIX) Addl
and Technology U

; : , : St : , : .« D, Felix Saouma (circled) with some of the participants.

77" Publications Output 2019

1 = Nabeta, KNS, Mohochi, SE., & Nyandiba, CN.

o (2019). Women, Politics, - Language - Shift and

' Mamtenance Case of Lullogoh in DlglossxcUtm Sub—j -t
o - SLE County, M1g0r1 County, Kenya Tnternational ]ouma/ of "

- Innovative. Re.vezrc/] & Deve]opment PE 95 100. DOI

o Nou 102494-0/1}1:(:1/2019/\'8/13/MAR19009

""‘"’4 T -5-.—:;;',.5»r.,‘tzﬁeﬁ':ﬁi‘;ﬁi%‘}ﬁ'ﬂw'-'5?'-‘-':":'?.1{’.”’-"1"~."> ek g



STUDENT AFFAIRS

;Student Aff"urs is headed by the Dem of Smdents and 1s.

rHostels and Accommodauons, Sports, Catermg ancl geneml'

students’ welfare. Aﬂ these divisions work together to ensure

ithat the students get | the best so as to concentrate on the core

functxon that is acadermcs

The Office of the Dean of Students deeply appreciates the
fact that the successful completion of our rigorous academic
programmes largely depends on the existence of a firm and
supportive welfare service that is dedicated to the creation of
a conducive learning environment as well as facilitating an all-
round development of a physically, psychologically, and
spiritually healthy individual. As such our ambition is to
address the holistic growth, development and well-being of
students in support of the university’s vision, mission, and
objectives.

Financial aid composition

Kaimosi Friends University College is a Public University;

therefore three quarters of the students admitted apply for the
Government Joan through The Higher Education Loan Board

(HELB).

In the financial year 2018/2019, the University College

managed to get financial aid from the following organization;

Donor & sponsors No of Amount]
students

The Maniben& Mohamed ally 2, 51,100

Rattansi Educational Trust

Clubs, Societies and Tamasha Events

Our students are active and have been engaged in a variety of
events that mold them to be all round as they graduate from
University.

Students are encouraged to form clubs and through them they
" have participated in many events. Some of the best pexfomnng

clubs are Debatmg, ‘Scouts and Maesno

Ona yearly basis the students take part in cultural
-event(Tamasha),and this year v we wete able to take’ partina

successfully orgamzed event that show case our cultural

R dlversn:y

Mt and Ms Kafuco, 2018/2019

The KAFUCO tamasha day was held on Friday 22nd March,
2019 with sporting events during the day and a climax of
selecting the Mr. and Ms. KAFUCO 2019 during the -
evening hours. The event was marked with various -
participants from the teaching and non-teaching staff, the
students and entire KAFUCO community. This was also a
venture for various students who ended up shooting their

music videos and launching their Audio/video albums
Student participation in games and sports

Sports, is an important aspect of the program offered at Kaimosi
Friends University College. Through competitive sports, :
students learn how to integrate in spheres outside the learning

environment, they nurture and tap their potential and also more’
significantly, learn how to win and lose with grace and dignity. :

All these are coordinated from the Dem of Students Ofﬁce

University Sports Assog:mtlon), Reglonal_Lg:vel games, Natlonal
C_hampions_hip :and'Loczﬂized_ Tour_uar'n_er_xts_ to expose them.



............... The_ZOIS/Z,O.I‘? peiformance of sports teams was as follows:

1‘i'f';'E';:E-im:i:i:i:i:i;mij:iv;i‘i.i.i R

L 's@ﬁ@ﬁgg@_ , KU:SA":K”?ZS???‘ """""""

L Swimming ()

Tk Gy [ ROSA Watem

Hockey (w)

: Soccer (m) KUSA Western

"""" Basketball (w) | KUSA National Championship | 10
Netball (w) | KUSA National Championship | 7

o S AN TR A R T R e R A T e

R LAY,
KAFUCO HOCKEY TEAM

KAFUCO NETBALL TEAM




INTRODUCTION

playerinensuring the operations

ol and delivery of services by the
Prof. M.M Amadalo Deputy
Principal (Finance &
Development)

University College to meets its
mandate of  undertaking
Teaching, Learning, Research, Innovation and Holistic
Development. This report is to present the key performance
highlights of the division of Finance and Development for
the Financial Year 2018/19.

BUDGET

The University College Budget was in line with the national
budget medium term expenditure framework (MTEF). The
Univessity College budget objectives were in line with the
sector budget objectives as per the vision 2030, millennium
development plans and other guiding policies of the National
Government. During the Plan period, the University College
in realizing our mandate of teaching, research and innovation,
the budget estimates recognizes that the national government
economic development agenda dubbed “The Big Fous”
agenda is a blueprint plan to address bottlenecks holding
back the four key economic enablers: manufacturing, food
security and nutrition, universal health care and housing. The
university college endeavored to align its budget to foster
"The Big fon” ageada

However, KAFUCQ ficed & major seback, which®is
" inadequate funding, She'had proposed a recurrent budger of
- KES 557205M out of which KES 422.755M was to be
~ drawn from the exchequer and KES 134450M would be
internally generated. During the reporting period there was
cediuction i excheques estrtont: grant with: the Litiversiey
College realizing KES 172.738M recurrent vote from the
exchequer -and an -overall decrease: of KES 43.569M in total

intemziﬂy ge’nemted revenue due to reduction n Che number

. of students. . . .

INCOME 12,8
‘ I'n. the period covering 2018/_19, KAF_U_CO total reyenué was’ '
KES' 410.573M from KES' 328.080M realized in the -

The .- finance department -
remained - - - a - - central

Despite, budget. constraints KAFUCO endeavors to actualize

and ‘realizes its. goals and objectives, and deliver its mandate -

previous year. This was made up of KES 172.738M from the -
exchequer recurrent KES 146.950M from Exchequer capital
development grant and KES 90.885M from internal sources.
EXPENDITURES

In the year 20I8/19, the University College’s total
expenditure was KES 318.930M that included KES 206.886
personal emoluments representing 66% of the total recurrent -
expenditure.

INVESTMENTS

In order to achieve the objective of improving teaching and
learning, the University College has invested in physical
facilities. The University College continued to make
substantial progress during the year in terms of development.
During the year, the University College made various
investments of fixed assets totaling to KES. 157.979M. this -
included ongoing building construction, renovations and
branding works at KES 157.979M,

The University College could not have achieved the progress
realized so far without the much needed financial support
from the Government of Kenya during the period under
review.

Below are key projects that the University is currently
undertaking:
ONGOING PROJECTS

Following the National Government directive of not

initiating new development projects before completion of the

previous ones, Kaimosi Friends University College undertook - '

the following two projects: continuation of tuition block and -

Renovation and branding of existing physical- facilities were
informed by Commission’ of ‘University. Education (CUE)
recommendations that,  zater alia, both ceaching and non-

teaching - staff  should- have- cfﬁces- thaf kowtow to theu‘




1+~ geandards aiid tha the instinition sheuld Bave liboratodes o111 <0111l LD L DL L L
- support graduates. And that lecture rooms and halls should 1.2 Renovation and Branding works Kshs. 78,128,80500
[+ - confforrh poltheie standard; -1 T

-+ ‘Phase 1 ‘of branding and renovation works encompassed _§
- remioval of asbestos f06fs from various buildings while phase
i, ‘andereakieni. i 20T8-2019. financial ‘yéas, ‘ricluded. ‘the
following:

L Conversion of classrooms into lecture halls, theaters;
il Conversion of workshops into science laboratories;
1. Renovation of offices and equipping them with work

stations;

“ Renovation of the dining hall and kitchen (equipping the
i kitchen with Liquefied Petroleum Gas system) and;

v.  Renovation of 8 No. dormitories to hostels.

WORK IN PROGRESS

LI Tuition Block and Associated works: Kshs.
159,655,770.00

ki
4

1
—— PR

This is a vision 2030 flagship project. Its 52.I5 %

complete.




Ongoing renovation of hostels

~ Ongoing renovation of lecture rooms, theaters and halls

Gate, Road works and Associated Works

g
PR

. I
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. 13Praially Completed Projects




STATEMENT OF UNIVERSITY COLLEGE COUNCILS
RESPONSIBILITIES

~ Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations
Act cap 446 require the Council members to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair
view. of the state of affairs of KAFUCO at the end of the year and the operating results of KAFUCO
for year ending 30 June, 2019. The Council members are also required to ensure that KAFUCO
keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of
KAFUCO. The Council members are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the KAFUCO.
The Council members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the KAFUCO’s
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of KAFUCO for and as at
the year ending 30 June, 2019. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial
management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting
period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which gisclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of KAFUCO; (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring
that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the
assets of KAFUCO; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Council members accept responsibility for KAFUCO’s financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates, in conformity with.International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the
manner required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act Cap 446. They are of the
opinion that KAFUCO's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of KAFUCO’s
transactions during the year ending 30 June, 2019, and of KAFUCQ’s financial position as at that date.
Council members further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for
KAFUCO’s, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the KAFUCO ’s financial statements as
well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial control.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Council members to indicate that the KAFUCO will not
remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.
Approval of the financial statements \
The KAFUCO’s financial statements were approved by the Council on '3‘\ vlJ:]\{‘lCJ and

signed gtits behalf by;

Dr. Bernadette -/ ngai, Prof. O. M. J. Nandi
Chairperson of Council, KAFUCO Principal, KAFUCO







REPUBLIC OF KENYA

HEADQUARTERS
Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

FFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL P.O. Box 30084-00100
NAIROBI

Telephone: +254-(20) 3214000
E-mail: info@oagkenya.go.ke
Website: www.oagkenya.go.ke

Enhancing Accountability

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KAIMOSI FRIENDS UNIVERSITY
COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2019

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kaimosi Friends University
College set out on pages 42 to 62, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2019, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
net assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Kaimosi Friends University College as at 30 June, 2019, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance
Management Act, 2012 and the Universities Act ,2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of Kaimosi Friends University College
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kaimosi Friends University College for the year ended 30 June, 2019



Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

The audit report for the previous year highlighted several issues in respect to cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables, and property, plant and equipment. The
financial statements for the year under review do not provide disclosure on the progress
made in resolving these issues and therefore do not fulfil the reporting requirements set
by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC RESOURCES
Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures performed,
except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Irregular Procurement of Fuel and Lubricants

Expenditure records examined indicated that Management appointed a local fuel
distributor to supply fuel and lubricants to the College for one year. However, no service
agreement was signed with the firm and no Local Purchase Order was issued for the
supplies made as required by procurement regulations.

Therefore, Management breached public procurement regulations and lacked recourse in
the event the supplier failed to undertake the contract as expected.

2. Failure to Observe One-Third Salary Deductions Rule

Section 19(3) of the Employment Act, 2007 provides that the total amount of all deductions
which may be made by an employer from the wages of an employee at any one time shall
not exceed two-thirds of such wages. However, examination of the payroll for the year
indicated that net salaries paid to nine (9) members of staff were less than a third of their
respective basic pay.

Consequently, the Management was in breach of the Law and also put the employees at
the risk of pecuniary embarrassment.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about
whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern

Report of the Auditor-General on Kaimosi Friends University College for the year ended 30 June, 2019
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them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS , RISK MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit procedures
performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control,
risk management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the ability
of the College to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless Management
is aware of intention to dissolve the College or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are applied
in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and

Report of the Auditor-General on Kaimosi Friends University College for the year ended 30 June, 2019
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systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIs will always detect a
material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the College’s
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

Report of the Auditor-General on Kaimosi Friends University College for the year ended 30 June, 2019
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the College to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion.
My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the College to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the College to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

RS
Nancy Gathung

AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

13 August, 2021

Report of the Auditor-General on Kaimosi Friends University College for the year ended 30 June, 2019
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'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KAIMOSI FRIENDS UNIVERSITY COLLEGE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
AS AT 30 JUNE 2019 (Figures in KES '000")

TS AT "~ Note
Revenue from Non-exchange transactions S
Exchequer Grants I

Revenue from exchange transactions
Tuition Fees

Other Tuition Related Income
IGA Income

Other Incomes

Do LN

Total revenue
Expenses -
Council Expensw 6 &
Utlllus : ; 7# I
Pcts_onnel costs : 8 b
Operating & Administrative Costs 9
Repairs and maintenance 10 &=
Depreciation and amortization expense I1 |
Loss onDnsposalotholog:mlAssem
Total expenses

Surplus / deficit for the period

Gain arising from change Biological Assets
Adi. Surplus/deficit B/f

surplus/deficit C/f

Dr Bemadette Mur{x ai, Prof. O. M. J. Nandi
Chairperson of Council, KAFUCO Principal, KAFUCO

N/B. The financial statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set

out in pages 47to 60







46,841

480

149,254

Rl

Dr. Bernadette Mung Prof. O. M. J. Nand:i
Chairperson of Council, KAFUCO Principal, KAFUCO

N/B. The financial statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set - -
out in pages 47 to 60




R :FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 ]"UNE 2019 (Flgutes in KES ooo')

KAIMOSI FRIENDS UNIVERSITY COLLEGE
'STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -

36338 -
- 16,867

146,950

(55,308)

.. %\\Akk\ﬁ A

Dr. Bernadette Mungat Prof O M ] Nanch 7
Chairperson of Council, KAFUCO Principal, KAFUCO

N/B. The financial statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set .

out in pages 47 to 60

Notes
Breakdown of Adjustment Amount

a.

Student Invoice adjustment amounting to KES 8,828,985 due to students who deferred and repeated but had been

invoiced in prior year

Student HELB ID Card expenditure for prior year un-posted during the period KES 1,100,000 "
Prior years manual transactions receipted to correct student balance instead of being brought forwards as opening balance - -
amounting to KES 1,965,051 )
Operating expenditure items wrongly classified as furniture, fitting and equipment in FY 2017-18 amounting to KES
759,687

Laboratory material expense of Ksh. 1,793,764 which had been wrongly included in the financial year under review as

operating & administrative costs, has been adjusted to opening balance equity since it related to the prior year.




———— —_— i
= o ————_
o

2019 (Figures in KES'000)

< \
Dr. Bernadette Munpai, Prof. O. M. J. Nandi
Chairperson of C Ecd. KAFUCO Principal, KAFUCO

N/B. The financial statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set .-

out in pages 47 to 60




REVENUE 2018/19 2018/19 [ 2018/19 20I8/19
EXCHEQUER GRANTS 156,196 16,542 7R 172,738
TUITION &OTHER TUITION 93,500 1,488 77,109
RELATED INCOME

IGA INCOME 8,239 LI13 8,063
OTHER INCOMES 11,387 (3,124) 5713
TOTAL INCOME 269,322 (16,019) 263,623
EXPENSES

COUNCIL EXPENSES 11,784 (1,304) 9,284
UTILITIES 6,300 (500) 5,098
PERSONNEL COSTS 158,028 24,670 206,886
OPERATING & 90,420 (10,624) 70,296
ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

REPAIRS AND 2,790 3,777 7,152
MAINTENANCE

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 269,322 16,019 298,716
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) = -B (35,093)

}
Dr. Bernadette M gai, Prof. O. M. J. Nandi
Chairperson of Cotmcil, KAFUCO Principal, KAFUCO

N/B. The financial statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set .-
out in pages 47 to 60




" the récurrent budget from exchequers the Un1ver31ty College was nhot able £o attract more PSSP students as marketmg '

- -activities were hmdered

finance the payroll expenses shortfall. However, the supplementary budget H allocation was reduced to KFS I9,666,507' o

thus the university college was not able to cover the whole of the payroll and related expense. This led to over spcnding" '

respective vote heads.

Operating and administrative costs
A remarkable under absorption in these costs can be attributed to the following:-
i Closer of University College due to student unrest that led to reduction in academic expenditure and other student
related expense.

.  Slow implementation of ODeL Programs and the research and enterprise development section.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30JUNE2019

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Kaimdsi friends University Conege is estéblished ‘ by and derives its authority a'n'd :iccount:ibﬂity from
University Act 2012. KAFUCO is wholly owned by the Governmenct of Kénya and is domiciled in Kenya.
KAFUCO principal activity is to provide quality education and training, research and innovation to meet the

needs of a dynamic society.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The KAFUCO financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, unless stated otherwise.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgment in
the process of applying KAFUCQO's accounting policies. There were no areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates were significant to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional and
reporting currency of KAFUCO.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PEM Act, the State Corporations Act
(include any other applicable legislation), and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting
standards as may be issued by the respective standard setting bodies from time to time. The financial
_____ statenents shall be prepared under the historical cost convention.
b) Revenue recognition
i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Government Recurrent Grants and Donors Research Grants
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value and
recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfer is free from
conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow to
the entity and can be measured reliably.
ii) Revenue from exchange transactions
. Student’s fees
The entity recogrﬁzes revenie from rendering of setvices by reference to the stage of Acompletion.when the.
i ogtcbine ‘of fhe transaction. can ‘be. estimated re_liably. Where the 'contraccAo‘utcpmve canhpt bevmeasured' e

- reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.



. Sale of goods
" Rev

ue from.the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks iand rewards of o‘wnershi‘p have béen'

=gt

transferred to the buyer, usually on deélivery-of-the goods and when'the amount of revenue ‘can be measured

reliably and it 1s probable that the economic benefits or service poténtial associated with the transaction will
flow to the entity.

 Interest income
Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. The method
applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest income each period.
Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and included in revenue.
¢) Budget information
The annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and income are presented in a
single statement to determine the needs of the entity. As a result of the adoption of the accrual basis for
budgeting purposes, there are no basis, timing or entity differences that would require reconciliation between
the actual comparable amounts and the amounts presented as a separate additional financial statement in the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.
d) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. When significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction
for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.
Depreciation and Amortisation are calculated on the straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset,

or the revalued amount, to its residual value over its estimated useful life using the following annual rates:

Description Annual Rate
Buildings 2.5%
Plant& machinery 20%
Computer 33.3%
Motor vehicles 25%
Badulii Fitting a;.e_qﬁipm'enﬁ RN Oy
‘ Intangible Ass.ets- ‘ s 20%

e)- - Intangible assets
 Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost.. The cost of intangible assets acquired in

- 'a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following initial recognition,




intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding . capitalized development costs," are not. capitalized aiid_
: _expciidifurc is reflected in surplus or deﬁ¢it' in t}ié Vperio}ci in which the e‘xpendi.tur:e:i:s: mcurred : _ ; TR
) 'T:he:uée_ﬁil iifé of t:h:ejiiit'angiiﬂe assets IS abs:seAss:ebdb ilsieit_h.ei: ﬁnite‘v 'o.riridéﬁni_t.e‘.j ) e
_Iiit(ingiblévassets shall be ambrtiéed over-their useful life on a strai.g_ht’ line basis. .‘Sufb$equ:e1itv éxpenditu:es oix_
inmngiblé assets shall be recognized as an expense for the period that it is incurred.
f) Research and development costs
All research costs are expensed as incurred.
Development costs are capitalised only after technical and commercial feasibility of the resulting product or
service have been established. All other treatments relating to research and development shall be as permitted
by the standards.
g) Financial instruments
i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The University determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
it) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The University determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. ‘
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.
Loans and borrowing
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or deficit when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method amortization process as
permitted by the standards.
h) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and current replacement cost. Cost is determined by the first-in,
fi_rst—out (FIFO) method. Current replacement cost represents the cost the_ entity would incur to acquire che}
;isscv: bii ‘t_h‘e_ reinciifting dai:_e, ' . : . o R
i) Provisions -
Provisions are recognized when the University has a present obligation (legal or-constructive) as a result df :‘1.
past event, it is probable that an outflow. of resources embodying economic benefits or setvice potential will

be required to settle the obligai:ion and ‘a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligatibn.




: : :Where the Umversxty expects some of . all of a prov151on to’ be rexmbursed for example, under an. msurancé A
:cont:ract the relmbursement is. recogmzed asa separate asset only when the rexmbursement is vn‘tually certain. o
.:The expense relatmg to any. provmon is presemed mn- the statement of ﬁnancml performance net of any.
: _ :relmbursement. v ,
’Contmgent habxlms
The Univers'it'y does-not recognize a contingent liability, but  discloses details of any Eéntirigériciés’irifhe
notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential is remote.
Contingent assets
The University does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose existence
is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the University in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed
continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset’s
value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of

the period in which the change occurs.

j)  Nature and purpose of reserves

The University creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. Entity to state the reserves
maintained and appropriate policies adopted.

k) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The University recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes
in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.
)  Employee benefits

The University provides retirement benefits for its employees.  Defined contribution plans are
postemployment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund),
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in
the year in which they become payable. The University also contributes to National Social Security Fund
(NSSF) a statutory defined contribution scheme registered under the NSSF Act, 2013.
m) Foreign currency transactions

: ‘Transacmons in forelgn currencies are xmtmlly accounted for at the ruhng rate of exchange on the datc of r_he' :
'::transacuon Trade creditors. or debtors denominated in forexgn currency. are reported at the statement of
financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. - Exchange differences arising

- "from the séttlement. of creditots, or from the reporting of .creditors at rates -different from those at which -



they were initially recorded cluring the period, are recognized as tncome or expenses in the period in which
they arise:

1) Cash and cash equivalents ‘

) Cash.én:d Césh equivalents ‘compriSe ;:ash on Vhafld and cash at baﬁk, short;temi.deposi‘ts 6n' call aria’ hxghly ‘
liquid investments with an origihal maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to. insignificant risk of changes in value.. For the purposes of the cash flow.
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cash at bank net of bank overdrafts.

o) Comparative figures

The comparative prior year figures are shown against every item in the financial statements. Consistent
accounting methods have been applied and changes made will be reported and the effect on reported results
disclosed.

p) Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the University’s financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. Management shall

ensure compliance with the Standards where such events become manifest.

q) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.

r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of discounts or premiums on borrowings, and amortisation of
ancillary costs incurred in the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs incurred on qualifying assets will
be treated as permitted by the IPSAS using the appropriate model.

s) Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all risks and rewards incidental ‘to ownership
of an asset are passed to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The University shall
charge all the payments on operating leases to the surplus or deficit on a straight line basis over the period of
the lease.

t) Investment Property

Investment property is land or buildings held (whether by the University or under a finance lease) to earn
_rentals or. for capxtal appreciation. or . both,. rather than production . or sale in the. ordmary course of
operations. Investment property shall be recogmzed as permxtted by the IPSAS usmg the approprxate‘v

= ‘recognmon model



v) Impurment of cash generating assets

An impairment loss of a cash generating asset is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss shall be recognized immediately in surplus or deficit for the year
and all other treatments shall be as permitted by the IPSAS

w) Impairment of Non-cash generating assets

An impairment loss of non-cash generating asset is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable service amount. An impairment loss shall be recognized immediately in surplus or
deficit for the year and all other treatments shall be as permitted by the IPSAS

x) Agriculture

All biological assets (including those acquired biological assets through non exchange transaction) are
measured at fair value less costs to sell, unless fair value cannot be measured reliably. Any change in the fair

value of biological assets during a period is reported in surplus or deficit.

Particular No. Cost/Fair Value FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19
Per Each Total Amount Total Amount
Cows 3/1 160,000/120,000 480,000 120,000 2 Disposed Off (Death)
Calf (Female) I 35,000 . 35,000
Calf (Male) I 20,000 = 20,000
Total 480,000 175,000

Gain arising from change Biological Assets (480,000-320,000-175,000) = 15,000



30JUNE-I8 - -
2 Revenue from non-exchange transactions KES -
=" Exchequer Grants '
I. Recurrent Grants iy
s Recurrent Grants Receivables 200,738,551 »»
Total Recurrent Grant revenue 200,738,551
Rendering of services 30 JUNE-I8
""" 2.Tuition Fees KES
Kuccres 52,111,400
pPssp =
Total revenue from Tuition 52,111,400
et 30 JUNE-I18
e 3. Other Tuition Related Income KES
RS Registration Fees 313,900
L Teaching Practice/Attachment Fees 3,356,500
Student ID Cards 315,500
Examination Fees 7,807,300
Caution money -
Amenity 1,739,000
Medical Fees 2,608,500
KUCCPS Processing Fees 859,500
Actavity Fees 1,739,000
ICT Levy 8,695,000
Library Fees 5,217,000
Students Organisation Fees (KAFUSO) 695,600
Supplementary Exams 112,000
Supervision Fees 55,000
Application Fees 55,500
} CUE Qu.z[uy Assurance Fees =
JENEREEE Total revenue from the Other Tuition Related 33,569,300
30 JUNE-I8
""" 4.Income Generating Activities KES
Accommodation Fees 2,503,000
Catering Income 2,570,480
""" Farm Income 6,155
Total IGA 5,079,635
30 JUNE-18
S.0ther Incomes KES
Hire Of Bus 101,395
IR o Donations 40,000
RN Hire of Hall & Conference facilities 24,660
““““ Hire Of Playing Ground 22,000 -
~ . Sale of Tender Documents 8,000 ...
.::_,::;:::::'i Miscellaneous Income 4,120 ':::: ,
.. Remarking fee 3,750 .. 4
" Rent Income 38,537 4
- Surcharge & Fines - ““"‘"""‘
- Total Revenue from Other Income 242,962




T .. 6.Remuneration of directors
L Sirting Allowance 15,641,699 .
<. Honoraria Allowance 1,080,000 - -
e Other Allowance 542,301 - - -

~ o Subsistence Allowance
|+ Total directors emoluments 17,264,000
: : ‘ . : : : : _ : : i j i ; N/B. InFY 2017/18 sttting allowance included subsistence allowance and :
... Training expenses for council members)

R 30 JUNE-18
B 8L 7. Undlities KES
R Electricity 2,015107
T Water 1,098,510
TR Total Unlity Expenses 3,113,617
----------- 30 JUNE-I8
. 8Emplopeecosts KES
S DBasic salary 75,920,627
""" House Allowance 34,706,059
R Commuting Allowance 8,179,665
AN Car Allowance 4,951,566
j ENENC Responsibiity Allowance 4,050,600
S Acting Allowance 295,548
R Entertainment allowance 2,052,333
_____ Telephone Allowance 1,411,000
Domestic workers 918,333

Professorial Allowance 121,667

,,,,,, Risk Allowance 164,200
Tool Allowance 1,450
: : : : o : o Extraneous Allowance 1,075,500
eletatety Passage and Baggage allowance 353,130
S Part-time Teaching Payments 13,877,197
IR Employers Pension Contributions 6,096,265
e Salary Locum Appointees 672,366
ENE Gratuity 7,719,000
R Leave Allowances 777,410
: : : ‘ = : . : : Other Allowance 816,278
; Employers NSSF Contribution 283,200
SEAEIREE Research/Book Allowance -
R NITA Employer Contribution =
S ePai Total Employee costs 164,443,394

30 JUNE-I8
9.0perating & Administrative Expense KES

et T Academic Trip -
ST Admission Expenses 780,000
AR Advertisements & Publicity 1,099,292
IR Anti-Corruption Expense 458,700
...... Bad & doubtful 2,910,781
10 Bank Chasges 62879 -
o Audit Fees 800,000 - .-
. Books & Journals 3,996,111
<o Carriage, Insurance and Fregght Charges 1,081,500 . .-
- Cleaning Materials 582,000 .
- Coaching & Mentoring =
... Contracted Cleaning Service =
585,360

2,198,000




Cultural Week/ Tamasha Expense

- Disabdity & Gender Marnstreaming 80,090
_____ " Disposal of Assets -
<. Examination Materials 1,308,175 -
.- External Examiners 859,840 - - -
< External Travels & Accommodation 66,905 - -
Tt . Facilitation Fees 376,040 - .
RS Farm Expense 982,390 ::::i
.. Fuel & Lubricants 1,788,324 . .-
EN AT Fumigation 144,000
S HIV,/Aids Expense 294,850
IR ICT Operating Expense -
Tl Interner Charges 4,100,812
Inter University Games -
ISO certification 223,200
Laboratory Material Expense 790,774
______ Library expenses 290,280
IR Management & Academic Board Expense 848,572
RN Medical scheme staff -
""" ODelL =
Office Expenses 176,061
RN Outstanding Creditors =
LT Payment of Medircal Bills 2,553,440
EALALY Professional & Legal services 25,000
""" Performance Contracting Service 998,328
Postal and courier expense 48,000
Printing and publications 163,000
Property Insurance expenses 5,861,197
public celebrations & funerals ~
Public Complains -
Purchase of Catering Items 5,962,560
Purchase of Medical Drugs 1,808,000
Purchase of Stationary 4,391,410 N
Recruitment, Apporntments and Promotions 236,672 -
Rent, Rates & Leases 187,000
........... Research & Enterprise Development Expenses 909,680
v ; Sanitary Services Expenses 75,000
Security Services 5,503,500
Serminars &Conference 362,250
i SGC Elections & Training 344,548
I Sport Equipment 77,000
el Staft Training & Development 2,810,840
ENENENESE Staff uniform and protective gears 309,902
KAFUSO 1,858,910
. KUCCPS Adrmussion Expense -
SN Subscriptions, License & Affiliation Expenses 367,205
RN Teaching Materials 519,780
S Teaching Practice & Industrial Attachment 3,047,723
R Tender Expense 123,900
JEMNR Transport Expense = e
LI S Travelling & Accommodation expenses 4,928,133 -

AR - University College Research fund

........ Tuition Fee Waiver Expenses

WnieoffExpenses
- Total Operating & Administrative Expense

120,000 -
22,192
70,500,606




Maintenance of Buildings & Stations

* Maintenance of Computers & Other Electronics

Maintenance of Hostel Faciities
Maintenance of Motor Vehicles

- Maintenance of Plant & Equipment

- Total repairs and maintenance

II.Depreciation and amortization expense
Property, plant and equipment

Intangible Asset

Total depreciation and amortization

12.Cash and cash equivalents
Current Account

Total cash and cash equivalents

CO-OP PSSP FEES A/C-1129698477700

EQUITY KUCCPS FEES - 960271081548

KCB SAVINGS A/C MMUST-KAIMOSI - 1164385291
KCBSAVINGS A/C KAFUCO DEPOSIT -1203735065
KCB KAFUCO CAPITAL DEV A/C-1203709862
KCB-KAFUCO PAYMENTS A/C-1203735030

CASH IN HAND

Total Cash and cash equivalents

I3.Receivables from exchange transactions
Current recervables

Student Debtors

MMUST HELB/CDF

HELB

Sundry debtors

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debt 10%
Total current receivables

I4. Receivables from non-exchange Transactions
Current recetvables

Staft Imprest Debtors

Insurance Claim Recervables

Gov't Recurrent Grants Receivables

Total Receivables from non-exchange Transactions

I5.Inventories

Central Stores:- Stationary
Central Stores:- Cleaning
Central Stores:- Catering

- Medical Drug Stores

" Maintenance Store

Teaching Lab Store

g . Farm Stores
" Games and Sports Stores

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value

3,844,139

547,000

1,932,824

<o), LN
1,879,000 "
1440354 -
5,802,898

30 JUNE-I8
KES
13,749,990

13,749,990

30 JUNE-I8
KES
99,163,658

6,845,675
1,233,764
880,950
17,278,027
66,307,799
6,617,443

99,163,658

30 JUNE-I8
KES

23,171,602
4,314,003
1,622,202

2,910,781
26,197,026

30 JUNE-18
KES

2,428,000

2,428,000
30 JUNE-I8
KES

687,259
316,279
91712,
2,113,059
699,272 -
3,200,000

687,805
7,795,386



Shs

8,971,380
1,978,620

10,950,000
2,237,390

(868.214)
12,319,176

2,490,162

2,490,162
1,539,897

©(108,524)
3,921,535

8,397,641

8,459,838

Shs

5,497,648

2,193,352

7,691,000

988,256

8,679,256

4395865

4,395,865
2,892,796

7,288,661
1,390,595

3,295,135

Shs. Shs

6,095264 52,994,094

5,633,100 96,259,619

11,728,364 149253,713
i 157,979,091

11,728,364 283,210,404

2,438,106 2
2,438,106 -
2,345,673 :
4,783,779 2

6,944,585 283210404

9,290,258 149,253,713

A2 A0

107,953,186

106,064,691

214,017,877
161,204,737

(24,890,614)
350,332,000

17,922,833

17,922,833
15,377,066

(108,524)
33,191,374

317,140,625

196,095,044

Shs | ..




- I7. Brological Assets
- Cows

" Total Biological Assets

- 18.Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables

Capital Creditors

WHTI- VAT, Corp & Related
Retention Fees

Total trade and other payables

I9.Emplopee Benefit Obligations
PENSION

UNION DUES

SACCOS

Staff Insurance

Staff Bank Loans

NHIF

INSSF

HELB-Loan Repayment Staff
Western University Benevolent Fund
Net Pay

PAYE

KAFUCO House Rent
WELFARES

Total Emplopee Benefit Obligations

N/B. Net pay includes outstanding part-time lecturer payment.

20. Payments received in advance
Fee prepayments
Total Papment Recetved in Advance

2I. Special Accounts & Grant
HELB Loan Fund
CDEF/Sponsorship

Total Special Accounts & Grants

22.Refundable deposits from customers
Consumer deposits (Caution Money,)
Total deposits

KES

480,000

480000

30 JUNE-I8

21,629,280

1,676,049
12,725,670
36,030,999

30 JUNE-I8
KES

30 JUNE-I8
KES
2,885,511
2,885,511

30 JUNE-I8
KES
268,000
1,520,900
1,788,900

30 JUNE-I8
KES

1,780,000
1,780,000



23 INTANGIBLE ASSETS SCHEDULE FOR 2018/I19FY AS AT 30TH JUNE 2019 -
ERP System Others Total
Particulars
Rate (%) 0.2 0.2
Cost Shs Shs Shs
At TJuly 2018 - - a0
Additions 24,022,400 _ 24,022,400
Disposals ) ) )
Transfers/adjustments ) ) )
At 30th June 2019 24,022,400 - 24,022,400
Depreciation and impairment:
At TJuly 2018 g 3 -
Adjustments-Over-depreciation ) ) -
On disposal ) ) -
Amortisation/Impairment for the Period 4804480 ) 4,804,480 :
At 30th June 2019 4,804,480 - 4,804,480 |
NBV At 30th June 2019 19,217,920 .- 19,217,920

N/B: The ERP amounting to KES 24 Million has been separated and transferred from capital projects’
work-in-progress and a full year amortisation provided.

24) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service pot’ential will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the resmbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any
reimbursement.

Provisions were raise in this Financial Year are as below.

Particulars KES ‘000’
i Provision for Gratuity 7,919
it » Audit Fces o 900

~iii. - Provision for Doubtful Debt of 10% 2,300

. Contingerit Liabdlities - T
T‘hg Entity does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes to
the_ financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow ‘of rescutees embodying economic benefits or

service potential is remote.
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" Theauditing process for financial year 2018/19 accounts is on-going. We will hrévﬁuieﬂ R
... ... .. follow uponissues from the auditor when the process is complete. -
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APPENDIX II: SUMMARY OF PROJECTS STATUS REPORT
KAIMOSI FRIENDS UNIVERSITY COLLEGE

Summary of salient details -of ongoing projects 30.062019

IMIS with Associated Server Hardware and Operating System

Cost of Project or Actual
; ] 5 Contract Value Actual cumulative " ; Progress
S/No Project Name Jirure Timeline ;:::::t Starus
(KESs)
Revised
.| Ongoing Start T Completion
completion date date
1. | Proposed Construction of Tuition Block and Associated Works 159,655,770.00 73,642,004 9 &5 S2.15%. |-
| KAFUCO/EST/01/16-17 24.01.2017 30.11.2017 30.05.2019 Stalled
| Proposed Construction of Library Extension and Associated )
2. Works 16,199,570.00 17,732,060 06.02.2017 24.05.20I8 .| 93.53% b
~ | KAFUCO/EST/05/16-17 R ey S, 05.02.2018 : going
Proposed Construction of Library Extension Phase IT
KAFUCO/EST/02/17-18
1 On
3. | Proposed renovations and Branding works at KAFUCO — Lot 1 _ 5 None 73.83% ;
13,669,89 L1 .05.
KAFUCO/EST/01/18-19 18,538,320.00 669,890 22.11.2018 21.05.2019 going
. On
4. Proposéd renovations and Branding works at KAFUCO — Lot IT 5 None 85.43% %
1pg 50,500. 24,621,287 1 .05.
KAFUCO/EST/02/18-19 28,850,500.00 2 22.11.2018 21.05.2019 going
. On
5. | Proposed renovations and Branding works at KAFUCO — Lot I1T i 27.150.000 > None 87.53% .
KAFUCO/EST/03,/18-19 30,739,985.24 27,150, 22.11.2018 21.05.2019 going
Oll-
. 29.940,
6. Proposed renovation Tana Hostels, ICT and other related works 31,200,000.00 7,157,181 25.03.2019 09.09.2019 B v..2.94/o going
On-
7. | Proposed Construction of Modern Daily Unit = Nonc 1.40% X
) 9,999, 5.03. .09.2019
KAFUCO/IGU/01/18-19 45,999,999 25.03.2019 09.09.201 going
; o - o A FRET
8. .| Supply, Delivery, Assembly, Installation and Commissioning of 25.752,000.00 24,022,400 03/10/2017 | 11/30/2018 None 94.72% On




KAFUCO/ICT/01/17-19

going

Supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning of Fiber Backbone
Infrastructure, Structured Cabling, Data Center with Associated
LAN Active Devices for Offices and Classes ar Kaimosi Friends
University College

KAFUCO/ICT/T03/2018-19

34,399,462.22

23,470,388.91

11/28/2018

11/27/2019

None

| 68.14% -

On
going

-10.

Supply, Installation, Testing and Commissioning of Biometric Kits
in Classes at Kaimosi Friends University College

KAFUCO/ICT/T04/2018-19

3,986,184.65

3,382,856.960

11/28/2018

11/27/2019

None

85%

On
going

Supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning of Interactive
White Boards with the Associated Devices for Classes at Kaimosi
Friends University College

KAFUCO/ICT/T05/2018-19

4,620,484.80

3,929,484.80

11/28/2018

11/27/2019

None

85.04%.

On

going

Practically complete projects

Development of Land Use Master Plan for Kaimosi Friends
University College
KAFUCO/EST/05/2018-2019

9,160,000.00

9,160,000.00

22.11.2018

21.05.2019

None




e ':, - APPENDIXIII: INTER- ENTITYTRANSFERS B
N s aonn KAIMOSIFRIENDSUNIVERSI’I‘YCOLLEGE ‘

Break 'dOwh 'of' Transfcts from the Statc Dcpartment of Educanon & Rescarch Fmancul Ym 2018/ 2019

a’ Recun:cm:Gtams

‘Bank StatementvDate S s e Amourit (KES) . | Indicate the FY to.-Which .. |. " "

the Amounts relate
8Aug-18 13,016,315 2018/19
10 Sept -18 13,016,315 2018/19
N 10ct-18 13,016,315 2018/19
12 Nov -18 13,016,315 2018/19
6 Dec-18 12,235,337 2018/19
7 Jan -19 11,454,358 2018/19
8 Feb -19 13,016,316 2018/19
25 Mar -19 13,016,316 2018/19
28 Mar -19 12,235,335 2018/19
2 May -19 13,016,316 2018/19
6 May -19 13,016,316 2018/19
28 May -19 13,016,316 2018/19
30 June- 19 19,666,507 2018/19
TOTAL 172,738,376

b | Development Grants

Bank Statement Date Amount (KES) Indicate the FY to Which
the Amounts relate
6 Dec-18 32,408,465 2018/19
20 Feb -19 39,851,023 2018/19
25 Mar -19 21,112,051 2018/19
31 May -19 53,578,299 2018/19
TOTAL 146,949,838
The abov unts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent ministry

Head of Finance Head of Accounting Unit

Kaimosi Friends University College Ministry of Education, Science & Technology

—————
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KAIMOSI FRIENDS UNIVERSITY COLLEGE (KAFUCO)

(A Constituent College of Masinde Muliro University of Science and Technology)

E-mail: principal@kafuco.ac ke Kaimosi - 50309
Website www.kafuco.ac.ke Kenva
\.\ :.-

Office of the Principal

Our Ref: KAF:/COP: 100012/ vOL.A3 (16) You Ref: TBA

>th September, 2019

Chief Administrative Secretary and Principal Secretary
Ministry of Education

State Departmant of University Education and Research
Jogoo iHouse ‘B’

Harambee Avenue

P. O. Box 9583-0G200

NAIROBI
. Atiz Chief Finance Dfficer
f Dear Prof.
0 RE: FY 2018/2019 INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS FOR CONFIRMATION
{5 The above su bject hereby refers.
|
;‘}[ Reference is made to The National Treasury Circular No. 6/2019, REE:
a AG.3/88/ VOL.VH(7) dated 15th May, 2019 on the above captioned matter.
0 ‘

s

Enclosed herewith, please find the Kaimosi Friends University College FY 2018/2019
Stnmary of inter - entity transfers, 4

We thank you for your continued support.

==

s
:J C' P : ™ ‘
L/% G . ,\ L1

Yours Faithfully
Prof. Ogodo, M. J. Nandi
PRINICTPAT.
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APPENDIX IIl: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS'
KAIMOSI FRIENDS UNIVERSITY COLLEGE

" Break down bFT_ran:sfér's fromi the Stace.Deparch1cn§ 6;fiEducari6r'1 & Research Financial Year 2018/2019 B

‘a’ | Recurrent Grants . * °

Bank Sctacement Date Amount (KES) Indicace the FY to Which .
the Amounts relate

8 Aug -18 [3,016315 2018/19
[0 Sepc -18 [3.016315 2018,/19
[ Oct-18 [3,0[6315 2018/19
[2 Nov -18 [3,016315 2018/19
6 Dec-18 12,235,337 2018/19
7 Jan -19 [1,454,358 2018/19
8 Feb -19 [3,016316 2018/19
25 Mar -19 13,016,316 2018/19
28 Mar -19 12,235333 2018/19
2 May -19 13016316 2018/19
6 May -19 13,016,316 2018/19
28 May -9 [3,616316 2018/19
30 June- 19 [9,666,507 2018/19
TOTAL 172,738,376

b | Development Grants

Bank Statement Dace Amounc (KES) [ndicare the FY to Whic
the Ainounts relate
6 Dec-18 324084565 / 2018/13
20 Feb -19 39,851,023 / 2018/19
25 Mar -19 2L11205] / 2018/19
31 May -19 53,578,299 / 2018/19
TOTAL 146,949,834 j
The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with che p}rcr‘{mlmsegx..:,"/",‘i oF EDU-C

=
Kaimosi Friends University College Ministry of Edu @"‘S\Eience & Technolog :
%, Chief Finant i

4 e,
4 .\"'_-—o-—-n.--'-‘
.95'&’7:-‘/;0 PSP
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Ry .\:-._’.u_‘_f:___":_::‘:,.,.—’

T :
Moﬂiﬁv&&‘?&?‘:i’su‘amm
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6;@ -------- ......;//g/@’f’.mcmvﬁm DA
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